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DECISION 


Clifford B. Marston’s podiatrist license is subject to discipline because Marston was found guilty of attempting to evade or defeat income tax, making false statements on income tax returns, and aiding and assisting in the preparation of false income tax returns.  
Procedure


The State Board of Podiatric Medicine (“the Board”) filed a complaint on October 8, 2008, asserting that Marston’s license is subject to discipline.  Though Marston received a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by certified mail on April 28, 2009, he did not file an answer to the complaint.   

This Commission convened a hearing on the complaint on July 7, 2009.  Assistant Attorney General Jonathan M. Hensley represented the Board.  Though Marston was notified of 
the date and time of the hearing, neither Marston nor anyone representing him appeared.  The reporter filed the transcript on July 10, 2009.  
Findings of Fact


1.  Marston was licensed by the Board as a podiatrist.  His license was current and active at all times relevant to these proceedings, and it expired on or about February 29, 2008.  


2.  On June 29, 2005, in the United States District Court for the Western District of Arkansas, the grand jury returned an indictment charging: 

COUNT 1
17.
That during the year 1998, Clifford B. Marston, hereafter Marston, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, had and received taxable income in the amount of approximately $81,610.00; that upon said taxable income, there was owing to the United States of America an income tax of approximately $2,384.00; that well-knowing and believing the foregoing facts, Marston on or about January 8, 2001, in the Western District of Arkansas did willfully attempt to evade and defeat the said income tax due and owing by him to the United States of America for the year 1998 by failing

to make known and report adjusted gross income from his podiatry business of approximately $112,188.00 by filing with the Internal Revenue Service a Form 1040EZ an individual income tax return for the tax year 1998 reflecting taxable income of negative $12,950.00 and claiming no tax due and owing.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7201.

COUNT 2
18.
That during the year 1999, Clifford B. Marston, hereafter Marston, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, had and received taxable income in the amount of approximately $76,372.00; that upon said taxable income, there was owing to the United States of America an income tax of approximately $5,269.00; that well-knowing and believing the foregoing facts, Marston on or about April 25,2000, in the Western District of Arkansas did willfully attempt to evade and defeat the said income tax due and owing by him to the United States of America for the year 1999 by failing to make known and report adjusted gross income from his podiatry business of approximately $100,983.00 by filing with the Internal Revenue Service a Form 1040EZ an individual income tax return 
for the tax year 1999 reflecting no taxable income and claiming no tax due and owing.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7201.

COUNT 3
19.
That during the year 2000, Clifford B. Marston, hereafter Marston, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, had and received taxable income in the amount of approximately $67,002.00; that upon said taxable income, there was owing to the United States of America an income tax of $13,067.00; that well-knowing and believing the foregoing facts, Marston on or about October 11, 2001, in the Western District of Arkansas did willfully attempt to evade and defeat the said income tax due and owing by him to the United States of America for the year 2000 by failing to make known and report adjusted gross income from his podiatry and other businesses of approximately $102,895.00 by filing with the Internal Revenue Service a Form 1040EZ an individual income tax return for the tax year 2000 reflecting taxable income of zero and claiming no tax due and owing.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7201.

COUNT 4
20.
That during the quarter ending December 31, 1999, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, had funds withheld as employment taxes from employees of his podiatry business and his employer share of employment taxes in the amount of$ 1,213.98 that was owing to the United States of America; that well-knowing and believing the foregoing facts, Marston, on or about January 31, 2000 in the Western District of Arkansas, did willfully attempt to evade and defeat the said employment taxes due and owing by the Defendant and his employees to the United States of America for the quarter ending December 31, 1999 by filing with the Internal Revenue Service, an agency of the United States of America, Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, reflecting employment taxes due or owing of $1,213.98 by his employees or himself, whereas taxes actually due and owing were approximately $6,062.00.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7201.

COUNT 5
21.
That during the calendar quarter ending, March 31, 2000, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, should have had funds withheld as employment taxes from employees of his podiatry business and his employer share of employment taxes on employee salaries totaling approximately $41,648.00 with employment taxes in the approximate amount of

$6,372.00 that was owing to the United States of America; that well-knowing and believing the foregoing facts, Marston, on or about May 11, 2000 in the Western District of Arkansas, did willfully attempt to evade and defeat the said employment taxes due and owing to the United States of America for the quarter ending March 31, 2000 by filing with the Internal Revenue Service, an agency of the United States of America, Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, reflecting zero employment taxes due and owing by his employees or himself.
In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7201.

COUNT 6
22.
That during the calendar quarter ending June 30, 2000, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, should have had funds withheld as employment taxes from employees of his podiatry business and his employer share of employment taxes on employee salaries totaling approximately $31,392.00 with employment taxes in the approximate amount of $4,803.00 that was owing to the United States of America; that well-knowing and believing the foregoing facts, Marston on or about July 31, 2000, in the Western District of Arkansas did willfully attempt to evade and defeat the said employment taxes due and owing to the United States of America for the quarter ending June 30, 2000 by filing with the Internal Revenue Service, an agency of the United States of America, Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941 reflecting zero employment taxes due and owing by his employees and himself.
All in violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7201.

COUNT 7
23.
That during the calendar quarter ending September 30, 2000, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, should have had funds withheld as employment taxes

from employees of his podiatry business and his employer share of employment taxes on employee salaries totaling approximately 
$31,353.00 with employment taxes in the approximate amount of $4,797.00 that was owing to the United States of America; that well-knowing and believing the foregoing facts, Marston on or about October 31, 2000, in the Western District of Arkansas did willfully attempt to evade and defeat the said employment taxes due and owing to the United States of America for the quarter ending September 30, 2000 by filing with the Internal Revenue Service, an agency of the United States of America, Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941 reflecting no employment taxes due and owing by his employees and himself.
All in violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7201.

COUNT 8
24.
That during the calendar quarter ending December 31, 2000, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, should have had funds withheld as employment taxes from employees of his podiatry business and his employer share of employment taxes on employee salaries totaling approximately $33,426.00 with employment taxes in the approximate amount of $2,079.00 that was owing to the United States of America; that well-knowing and believing the foregoing facts, Marston on or about January 31, 2001, in the Western District of Arkansas did willfully attempt to evade and defeat the said employment taxes due and owing to the United States of America for the quarter ending December 31, 2000 by filing with the Internal Revenue Service, an agency of the United States of America, Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941 reflecting no employment taxes due and owing by his employees and himself.
All in violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7201.

COUNT 9
25.
That during the calendar quarter ending March 31, 2001, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, should have had funds withheld as employment taxes from employees of his podiatry business and his employer share of employment taxes on employee salaries totaling approximately $33,285.00 with employment taxes in the approximate amount of $5,093.00 that was owing to the United States of America; that well-knowing and believing the foregoing facts, Marston on or about April 30, 2001, in the Western District of Arkansas did willfully attempt to evade and defeat the said employment taxes due and owing to the United States of America for the quarter ending March 31, 2001 by filing with the Internal Revenue 
Service, an agency of the United States of America, Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941 reflecting no employment taxes due and owing by his employees and himself.

All in violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7201.

COUNT 10
26.
That on or about December 6, 1999, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully make and subscribe an Amended Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, for the four quarters of calendar year 1996, which was verified by a written declaration that it was made under the penalties of perjury and was filed with the Internal Revenue Service, which said Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, he did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the said return failed to disclose wages paid to employees of the Sunshine Foot Clinic, Inc., that Marston had paid his employees working in his podiatry business and fraudulently claimed a refund of $20,163.10,

whereas, as he then and there well knew and believed he was required by law and regulations to disclose wages paid to employees and was not entitled to his refund claim of $20,163.10.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).

COUNT 11
27.
That on or about December 6, 1999, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully make and subscribe an Amended Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, for the quarter ending March 31, 1997, which was verified by a written declaration that it was made under the penalties of perjury and was filed with the Internal Revenue Service, which said Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, he did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the said return failed to disclose wages paid to employees of the Sunshine Foot Clinic, Inc. that Marston had paid his employees working in his podiatry business and fraudulently claimed a refund of $3,859.48, whereas, as he then and there well knew and believed he was required by law and regulations to disclose wages paid to employees and was not entitled to his refund claim of $3,859.48.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).

COUNT 12
28.
That on or about December 6, 1999, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully make and subscribe an Amended Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, for the quarter ending June 30, 1997, which was verified by a written declaration that it was made under the penalties of perjury and was filed with the Internal Revenue Service, which said Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, he did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the said return failed to disclose wages paid to employees of the Sunshine Foot Clinic, Inc. that Marston had paid his employees working in his podiatry business and fraudulently claimed a refund of $3,002.86, whereas, as he then and there well knew and believed he was required by law and regulations to disclose wages paid to employees and was not entitled to his refund claim of $3,002.86.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).

COUNT 13
29.
That on or about December 6, 1999, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully make and subscribe an Amended Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, for the quarter ending September 30, 1997, which was verified by a written declaration that it was made under the penalties of perjury and was filed with the Internal Revenue Service, which said Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, he did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the said return failed to disclose wages paid to employees of the Sunshine Foot Clinic, Inc. that Marston had paid his employees working in his podiatry business and fraudulently claimed a refund of $4,586.03, whereas, as he then and there well knew and believed he was required by law and regulations to disclose wages paid to employees and was not entitled to his refund claim of $4,586.03.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).

COUNT 14
30.
That on or about December 6, 1999, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully make and subscribe an Amended Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, for the quarter ending December 31, 1997, which was verified by a 
written declaration that it was made under the penalties of perjury and was filed with the Internal Revenue Service, which said Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, he did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the said return failed to disclose wages paid to employees of the Sunshine Foot Clinic, Inc. that Marston had paid his employees working in his podiatry business and fraudulently claimed a refund of $11,426.07, whereas, as he then and there well knew and believed he was required by law and regulations to disclose wages paid to employees and was not entitled to his refund claim of $11,426.07.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C.§ 7206(1).

COUNT 15
31.
That on or about December 6, 1999, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully make and subscribe an Amended Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, for the quarter ending March 31, 1998, which was verified by a written declaration that it was made under the penalties of perjury and was filed with the Internal Revenue Service, which said Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, he did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the said return failed to disclose wages paid to employees of the Sunshine Foot Clinic, Inc. that Marston had paid his employees working in his podiatry business and fraudulently claimed a refund of $9,901.27, whereas, as he then and there well knew and believed he was required by law and regulations to disclose wages paid to employees and was not entitled to his refund claim of $9,901.27.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).

COUNT 16
32.
That on or about December 6, 1999, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully make and subscribe an Amended Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, for the quarter ending June 30, 1998, which was verified by a written declaration that it was made under the penalties of perjury and was filed with the Internal Revenue Service, which said Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, he did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the said return failed to disclose wages paid to employees of the Sunshine Foot Clinic, Inc. that Marston had paid his employees working in his podiatry business and fraudulently claimed a refund of $7,752.55, whereas, 
as he then and there well knew and believed he was required by law and regulations to disclose wages paid to employees and was not entitled to his refund claim of $7,752.55.
In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).

COUNT 17
33.
That on or about December 6, 1999, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully make and subscribe an Amended Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, for the quarter ending September 30, 1998, which was verified by a written declaration that it was made under the penalties of perjury and was filed with the Internal Revenue Service, which said Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, he did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the said return failed to disclose wages paid to employees of the Sunshine Foot Clinic, Inc. that Marston had paid his employees working in his podiatry business and fraudulently claimed a refund of $6,965.51, whereas, as he then and there well knew and believed he was required by law and regulations to disclose wages paid to employees and was not entitled to his refund claim of $6,965.51.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).

COUNT 18
34.
That on or about December 6, 1999, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully make and subscribe an Amended Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, for the quarter ending December 31, 1998, which was verified by a written declaration that it was made under the penalties of perjury and was filed with the Internal Revenue Service, which said Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, he did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the said return failed to disclose wages paid to employees of the Sunshine Foot Clinic, Inc., that Marston had paid his employees working in his podiatry business and fraudulently claimed a refund of $9,720.57, whereas, as he then and there well knew and believed he was required by law and regulations to disclose wages paid to employees and was not entitled to his refund claim of $9,720.57.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).

COUNT 19
35.
That on or about February 7, 2000, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully make and subscribe an Amended Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, for the quarter ending March 31, 1999, which was verified by a written declaration that it was made under the penalties of perjury and was filed with the Internal Revenue Service, which said Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, he did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the said return failed to disclose wages paid to employees of the Sunshine Foot Clinic, Inc. that Marston had paid his employees working in his podiatry business and fraudulently claimed a refund of $8,098.56, whereas, as he then and there well knew and believed he was required by law and regulations to disclose wages paid to employees and was not entitled to his refund claim of $8,098.56.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).

COUNT 20
36.
That on or about February 7, 2000, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully make and subscribe an Amended Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, for the quarter ending June 30, 1999, which was verified by a written declaration that it was made under the penalties of perjury and was filed with the Internal Revenue Service, which said Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, he did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the said return failed to disclose wages paid to employees of the Sunshine Foot Clinic, Inc. that Marston had paid his employees working in his podiatry business and fraudulently claimed a refund of $6,917.48, whereas, as he then and there well knew and believed he was required by law and regulations to disclose wages paid to employees and was not entitled to his refund claim of $6,917.48.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).

COUNT 21
37.
That on or about February 7, 2000, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully make and subscribe an Amended Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, Form 941, for the quarter ending September 30, 1999, which was verified by a 
written declaration that it was made under the penalties of perjury and was filed with the Internal Revenue Service, which said Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, he did not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter in that the said return failed to disclose wages paid to employees of the Sunshine Foot Clinic, Inc. that Marston had paid his employees working in his podiatry business and fraudulently claimed a refund of approximately $8,432.54, whereas, as he then and there well knew and believed he was required by law and regulations to disclose wages paid to employees and was not entitled to his refund claim of $8,432.54.

In violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).

COUNT 22
38.
That on or about April 15, 2000, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully assist in and procure, counsel, and advise in the preparation and presentation to the Internal Revenue Service, of a United States Individual Income Tax Return Form 1040 of Phillip and Misty Davis for the calendar year 1999 which was false and fraudulent as to a material matter in that Marston provided Misty Davis as an employee of Marston a Form W-2C reporting no wages earned for federal tax purpose, whereas, the Defendant then and there well knew and believed that he had paid Misty Davis as his employee wages subject to federal income taxes.

All in violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(2).

COUNT 23
39.
That on or about April 15, 2001, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully assist in and procure, counsel, and advise in the preparation and presentation to the Internal Revenue Service, of a United States Individual Income Tax Return Form 1040 of Phillip and Misty Davis for the calendar year 2000 which was false and fraudulent as to a material matter in that Marston provided Misty Davis as an employee of Marston a Form W-2 reporting no wages earned for federal tax purpose, whereas, the Defendant then and there well knew and believed that he had paid Misty Davis as his employee wages subject to federal income taxes.

All in violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(2).

COUNT 24
40.
That on or about April 15, 2000, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully assist in and procure, counsel, and advise in the preparation and presentation to the Internal Revenue Service, of a United States Individual Income Tax Return Form 1040 of Joseph and Loretta Jelinek for the calendar year 1999 which was false and fraudulent as to a material matter in that Marston provided Loretta Jelinek as an employee of Marston a Form W-2C reporting no wages earned for federal tax purpose, whereas, the Defendant then and there well knew and believed that he had paid Loretta Jelinek as his employee wages subject to federal income taxes.

All in violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(2).

COUNT 25
41.
That on or about April 15, 2001, in the Western District of Arkansas, Clifford B. Marston, Defendant, a resident of Gassville, Arkansas, did willfully assist in and procure, counsel, and advise in the preparation and presentation to the Internal Revenue Service, of a United States Individual Income Tax Return Form 1040 of Joseph and Loretta Jelinek for the calendar year 2000 which was false and fraudulent as to a material matter in that Marston provided Loretta Jelinek as an employee of Marston a Form W-2 reporting no wages earned for federal tax purpose, whereas,

the Defendant then and there well knew and believed that he had paid Loretta Jelinek as his employee wages subject to federal income taxes.

All in violation of Title 26 U.S.C. § 7206(2).


3.  Marston committed the conduct set forth in the indictment and in Finding 2.  


4.  On May 19, 2006, in the United States District Court for the Western District of Arkansas, Marston was found guilty on each count set forth in the indictment:  nine counts of attempting to evade or defeat tax, eleven counts of making false statements on income tax returns, and four counts of aiding and assisting in preparation of false income tax returns.  On December 12, 2006, the court sentenced him to 26 months in prison on each count, to run 
concurrently.  The court ordered Marston to pay an assessment of $2,500 and a fine of $5,000, and to make restitution in the amount of $296,477.35.   
Conclusions of Law


This Commission has jurisdiction over the Board’s complaint.
  The Board has the burden of proof.
  


The Board asserts cause to discipline under § 330.160.2(2): 
2.  The board may cause a complaint to be filed with the administrative hearing commission as provided by chapter 621, RSMo, against any holder of any certificate of registration or authority, permit or license required by this chapter or any person who failed to renew or has surrendered his or her certificate of registration or authority, permit or license for any one or any combination of the following causes:  

*   *   *
(2) The person has been finally adjudicated and found guilty, or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, in a criminal prosecution under the laws of any state or of the United States, . . . for any offense an essential element of which is fraud, dishonesty or an act of violence, or for any offense involving moral turpitude, whether or not sentence is imposed[.]

26 U.S.C. § 7201 provides: 

Any person who willfully attempts in any manner to evade or defeat any tax imposed by this title or the payment thereof shall, in addition to other penalties provided by law, be guilty of a felony and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined not more than $100,000 ($500,000 in the case of a corporation), or imprisoned not more than 5 years, or both, together with the costs of prosecution. 


Fraud is "an intentional perversion of truth to induce another, in reliance on it, to part with some valuable thing belonging to him."
  Dishonesty is a lack of integrity, a disposition to 
defraud or deceive.
  Dishonesty also includes actions that reflect adversely on trustworthiness.
  The question is whether fraud or dishonesty is an essential element in every case.
 


A willful attempt to evade or defeat income tax involves an intentional perversion of truth to induce the government, in reliance on the false statement, to part with tax money otherwise due to the government.  The crime also necessarily involves a lack of integrity and a disposition to defraud or deceive, and is an action that reflects adversely on trustworthiness.


26 U.S.C. § 7206 provides:  

Any person who—

(1) Declaration under penalties of perjury.  Willfully makes and subscribes any return, statement or other document, which contains or is verified by a written declaration that it is made under the penalties of perjury, and which he does not believe to be true and correct as to every material matter; or

(2) Aid or assistance.  Willfully aids or assists in, or procures, counsels, or advises the preparation or presentation under, or in connection with any matter arising under, the internal revenue laws, of a return, affidavit, claim, or other document, which is fraudulent or is false as to any material matter, whether or not such falsity or fraud is with the knowledge or consent of the person authorized or required to present such return, affidavit, claim, or document; . . . 

*   *   *
shall be guilty of a felony and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined not more than $100,000 ($500,000 in the case of a corporation), or imprisoned not more than 3 years, or both, together with the costs of prosecution.  


26 U.S.C. 7206(1) sets forth the crime of making false statements on income tax returns.  This crime involves an intentional perversion of truth to induce the government, in reliance on the false statement, to part with tax money otherwise due to the government.  The crime also 
necessarily involves a lack of integrity and a disposition to defraud or deceive, and is an action that reflects adversely on trustworthiness.


26 U.S.C. § 7206(2) sets forth the crime of willfully aiding and assisting in the preparation of false income tax returns.  An essential element of this crime is an intentional perversion of truth to induce the government, in reliance on the false statement, to part with tax money otherwise due to the government.  The crime also necessarily involves a lack of integrity and a disposition to defraud or deceive, and is an action that reflects adversely on trustworthiness.


Moral turpitude is:
an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man; everything “done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.”[
]

In Brehe v. Missouri Dep’t of Elementary and Secondary Education,
 a case that involved discipline of a teacher’s certificate under § 168.071 for committing a crime involving moral turpitude, the court referred to three classifications of crimes:

(1) crimes that necessarily involve moral turpitude, such as frauds (Category 1 crimes);

(2) crimes “so obviously petty that conviction carries no suggestion of moral turpitude,” such as illegal parking (Category 2 crimes); and

(3) crimes that “may be saturated with moral turpitude,” yet do not involve it necessarily, such as willful failure to pay income tax or refusal to answer questions before a congressional committee” (Category 3 crimes).
The Brehe court specifically stated that willful failure to pay income tax is a Category 3 crime, which may be saturated with moral turpitude but does not involve it necessarily.  The same is true of making false statements on income tax returns, and aiding and assisting in the preparation of false income tax returns.  Marston repeatedly failed to pay income or withholding taxes in substantial amounts.  He also fraudulently claimed refunds in substantial amounts and provided an employee with W-2 or W-2C forms falsely reporting no wages earned.  Marston’s conduct was an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties that a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man.  Marston’s conduct was “contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.”  There is cause for discipline under § 330.160.2(2).    
Summary


Marston is subject to discipline because he was found guilty of attempting to evade or defeat income tax, making false statements on income tax returns, and aiding and assisting in the preparation of false income tax returns.  Fraud and dishonesty are essential elements of attempting to evade or defeat tax, making false statements on income tax returns, and aiding and assisting in the preparation of false income tax returns.  All three crimes involve moral turpitude.  

SO ORDERED on September 30, 2009.



________________________________



JOHN J. KOPP  



Commissioner
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